
Licensing and Environmental Health Committee

Date: Wednesday, 6th December, 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Committee Room - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

Essex CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor R Chambers
Members: Councillors A Anjum, G Barker, J Davey, A Gerard, T Goddard 

(Vice-Chair), J Gordon, E Hicks, S Morris and G Sell

Substitutes: Councillors H Asker, J Freeman, R Freeman, D Jones and 
J Loughlin

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 – Radhuni

5 - 68

To consider an application for the review of a Premises Licence 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Public Document Pack



3 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 – Razza

69 - 122

To consider an application for the review of a Premises Licence 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510548/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510548/369 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Licensing & Environmental Health

Date: 6 December 2017

Title: Application for the review of a premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003 – 
Radhuni, 56 High Street, Newport, Essex. 
CB11 3QX

Agenda Item

2

Author: Amanda Turner, Licensing Team Leader 
01799 501613

Item for decision: 
yes

Summary

1 This report sets out an application for the review of the premises licence in 
respect of Radhuni, 56 High Street, Newport. CB11 3QX. The review 
application has been received from Essex Police as a responsible authority.

Radhuni restaurant is situated in the centre of the village of Newport. A plan 
showing the location of premise in the village is attached as Appendix 2. It is 
licensed for the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment and the hours of 
this can be seen on their premises licence attached as Appendix 3.  

2 The Licensing Act 2003 places an obligation on a Licensing Authority to 
promote the four licensing objectives which are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

Recommendations

3 The review is determined

Financial Implications

4 None arising from this report

Background Papers

5 The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
(a) Premises Licence
(b) Plan of Premises
(c) Application for the review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 

2003 – received from Essex Police, Statutory Consultee
(d) Licensing Act 2003
(e) Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
(f) Uttlesford District Council Statement of Licensing Act 2003 Policy 2017-22

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



(g) Representation e-mail from Home Office dated 9 November 2017

Impact 

6  

Communication/Consultation The review notice has been displayed on 
the premises, Statutory consultees notified 
and application advertised on the UDC 
website.

Community Safety None

Equalities None

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

Under Article 1 First Protocol to the 
European Convention on Human Rights 
everyone is entitled to peaceful enjoyment 
of their possessions which includes 
property. This right may be interfered with if 
necessary to control the use of property in 
accordance with the general interest. The 
imposition of conditions under the 
Licensing Act 2003 is a legitimate 
interference with this right in this context.
In the event that the licence holder or 
anyone who has made relevant 
representations is dissatisfied with the 
decision of the committee there is a right of 
appeal to the Magistrates Court.

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts Thaxted

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

7 The original application for a premises licence was granted on 18 November 
2015. No representations were made to the application and it was granted as 
applied for. A copy of the premises licence is shown in Appendix 3

The Council received an application for the review of this licence from Essex 
Police on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder. The review 
application submitted by Essex Police which includes witness statements can 
be seen in Appendix1.

Page 6



Essex Police are seeking a revocation of this premises licence based on the 
following licensing objective:
The prevention of Crime and Disorder 
No right to work checks are being carried out at the premises demonstrating a 
lack of prevention of crime and disorder.

8 A Notice of Review was issued by Uttlesford District Council’s Licensing 
Department and delivered by our Licensing Enforcement Officer on 20 
October 2017.The premises was closed at the time of delivery but the notice 
was displayed by the Enforcement Officer on the front window of the 
restaurant and details of this review have been advertised on the Council’s 
website. The Notice advised of the grounds for the review and requested 
representations should be made between Friday 20 October and Thursday 16 
November to Uttlesford District Council in writing.  

9 All Statutory consultees were served a copy of the review application. The 
Home Office have sent in a representation supporting the Police’s version of 
events which can be seen in Appendix 4.No comments/representations have 
been received from the other consultees during the 28 day consultation period.

10 The decision that the Committee can make for this review is to:

 Allow the licence to continue unmodified

 Modify the conditions of the licence

 Modify the conditions of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 
months.

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence for a period 
not exceeding 3 months.

 Revoke a licence

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

11 When carrying out a review of a licence, due regard should be given to the 
Council’s licensing policy and Secretary of State Guidance issued under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

12 The Secretary of State’s guidance issued in April this year includes new 
guidance in respect of immigration issues. 

13 Paragraph  2.6 says The prevention of crime includes the prevention of 
immigration crime including the prevention of illegal working in licensed 
premises. Licensing authorities should work with Home Office Immigration 
Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these matters.

Page 7



14 Paragraph 4.22 highlights the importance placed on immigration offences, as it 
considers that it is grounds for objecting to the granting of a personal licence 
on the basis that it would be prejudicial to the prevention of crime and 
disorder.

15 Paragraph 8.99 says (although in respect of objections to the transfer of a 
premises licence, again highlights that it would be appropriate), in exceptional 
circumstances for objections to be raised by the police or immigration officials 
where the transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working.

16 These following paragraphs of the guidance are in respect of a review of the 
premises, where crime and disorder is an issue. It highlights the seriousness 
with which the Secretary of State expects licensing authorities to treat 
immigration offences on licensing premises. 

17 Paragraph 11.18 says ‘Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account 
any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been required to pay 
for employing an illegal worker.’

18 Paragraph 11.26 says ‘Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on 
the grounds that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is 
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the 
premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is 
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems 
may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence 
holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with 
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing 
authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the 
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in 
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence 
holder. ‘

19 Paragraph 11.27 says ‘There is certain criminal activity that may arise in 
connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly 
seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises: 
• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs 

Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and 

music, which does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts 

on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity 
for crime of young people; 

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
• for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of 

their immigration status in the UK; 
• for unlawful gambling; and 
• for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. ‘

Page 8



20 Paragraph 11.28 says ‘It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the 
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, 
which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to 
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing 
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined 
through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously 
considered.’ 

23 The Council’s existing licensing policy does not specifically make reference to 
immigration issues, but the new policy which takes effect on the 1 December 
2017, does have the following relevant paragraphs
3.3 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime, 

and the Licensing Authority will work with Home Office Immigration 
Enforcement in respect of these matters.

 The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and disorder, 
places a responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in 
achieving this objective. If representations are made to the Licensing 
Authority applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their 
operating schedule that suitable and sufficient measures have 
been identified and will be implemented and maintained to reduce 
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their 
premises, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of 
their premises and events.

3.4 When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should 
consider those factors that impact on crime and disorder. These may 
include:

 Underage drinking
 Drunkenness on premises
 Public drunkenness
 Drugs
 Violent behaviour
 Anti-social behaviour
 Illegal working

Control Measures

3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist 
applicants who may need to take account of them in their operating 
schedule in the event that representations are received, having regard 
to their particular type of premises and/or activities:

(a) Effective and responsible management of premises
(b) Training and supervision of staff
(c) Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Safer Clubbing, the National 

Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit and other voluntary codes of 
practice, including those relating to drinks promotions e.g. The Point of 

Page 9



Sale Promotions published by BBPA, Security in Design published by 
BBPA and Drugs and Pubs, published by BBPA)

(d) Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards e.g. PASS, locally approved 
‘proof of age’ cards e.g. ’Prove It’ and/or ‘new type’ driving licences with 
photographs or adoption of industry best practice (e.g. Challenge 25 
policy)

(e) Provision of effective CCTV and mirrors in and around premises
(f) Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed Doorstaff
(g) Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels
(h) Provision of secure, deposit boxes for confiscated items (‘sin bins’)
(i) Provision of litterbins and other security measures, such as lighting, 

outside premises
(j) Membership of local ‘Pubwatch’ schemes or similar organisations
(k) Right to work checks on staff and retention of documents

24 If the Committee in their decision wishes to impose conditions, the only 
conditions that can be imposed are those that are necessary and 
proportionate to promote the licensing objective relative to the representations 
received. Equally, the Committee should not impose conditions that duplicate 
the effect of existing legislation.

25 Secretary of State guidance provides in paragraph 10.8 and 10.10 the 
following guidance for members-
10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its 

discretion has been exercised following receipt of relevant 
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all 
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to impose 
conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In 
order to promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions 
may be included that are aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed 
premises.

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the 
size, type, location and characteristics and activities taking place at the 
premises concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-
case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these individual 
aspects should be avoided…Conditions that are considered appropriate 
for the prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol 
or late night refreshment might include requiring a premises licence 
holder to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the 
licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any document checked as 
part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 
Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive 
to the indirect costs that can arise because of conditions.

Page 10



Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

There may be 
further incidents 
which gives 
cause for concern 
at these premises

3. Members 
would need to 
take a view on 
the probability 
of further 
incidents 
taking place at 
these 
premises

The 
undermining 
of the 
licensing 
objective 
relating to the 
prevention of 
crime and 
disorder 

The undermining of 
the licensing objective 
relating to the 
prevention of crime 
and disorder would be 
treated as a serious 
matter by the 
Licensing Authority

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Licensing & Environmental Health

Date: 6 December 2017

Title: Application for the review of a premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003 – 
Razza, Temple Buildings, Braintree Road, 
Felsted. Essex. CM6 3DL.

Agenda Item

3

Author: Amanda Turner, Licensing Team Leader 
01799 501613

Item for decision: 
yes

Summary

1 This report sets out an application for the review of the premises licence in 
respect of Razza, Temple Buildings, Braintree Road, Felsted. The review 
application has been received from Essex Police as a responsible authority.

Razza restaurant is situated in the centre of the village of Felsted. A plan 
showing the location of premise in the village is attached as Appendix 2. It is 
licensed for the sale of alcohol, late night refreshment and regulated 
entertainment. The hours of this can be seen on their premises licence 
attached as Appendix 3.  

2 The Licensing Act 2003 places an obligation on a Licensing Authority to 
promote the four licensing objectives which are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 The prevention of public nuisance
 The protection of children from harm

Recommendations

3 The review is determined

Financial Implications

4 None arising from this report

Background Papers

5 The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
(a) Premises Licence
(b) Plan of Premises
(c) Application for the review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 

2003 – received from Essex Police, Statutory Consultee
(d) Licensing Act 2003
(e) Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 69

Agenda Item 3



(f) Uttlesford District Council Statement of Licensing Act 2003 Policy 2017-22
(g) Representation e-mail from Home Office dated 9 November 2017

Impact 

6  

Communication/Consultation The review notice has been displayed on 
the premises, Statutory consultees notified 
and application advertised on the UDC 
website.

Community Safety None

Equalities None

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

Under Article 1 First Protocol to the 
European Convention on Human Rights 
everyone is entitled to peaceful enjoyment 
of their possessions which includes 
property. This right may be interfered with if 
necessary to control the use of property in 
accordance with the general interest. The 
imposition of conditions under the 
Licensing Act 2003 is a legitimate 
interference with this right in this context.
In the event that the licence holder or 
anyone who has made relevant 
representations is dissatisfied with the 
decision of the committee there is a right of 
appeal to the Magistrates Court.

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts Thaxted

Workforce/Workplace None

Situation

7 The original application for a premises licence was granted on 28 December 
2012. No representations were made to the application and it was granted as 
applied for. A copy of the premises licence is shown in Appendix 3

The Council received an application for the review of this licence from Essex 
Police on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder. The review 

Page 70



application submitted by Essex Police which includes witness statements can 
be seen in Appendix1.
Essex Police are seeking a revocation of this premises licence based on the 
following licensing objective:
The prevention of Crime and Disorder 
No right to work checks are being carried out at the premises demonstrating a 
lack of prevention of crime and disorder.

8 A Notice of Review was issued by Uttlesford District Council’s Licensing 
Department and delivered by our Licensing Enforcement Officer on 20 
October 2017.The premises was closed at the time of delivery but the notice 
was displayed by the Enforcement Officer on the iron entrance gate at the 
entrance to the premises and details of this review have been advertised on 
the Council’s website. The Notice advised of the grounds for the review and 
requested representations should be made between Friday 20 October and 
Thursday 16 November to Uttlesford District Council in writing.  

9 All Statutory consultees were served a copy of the review application. The 
Home Office have sent in a representation supporting the Police’s version of 
events which can be seen in Appendix 4.No comments/representations have 
been received from the other consultees during the 28 day consultation period.

10 The decision that the Committee can make for this review is to:

 Allow the licence to continue unmodified

 Modify the conditions of the licence

 Modify the conditions of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 
months.

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence for a period 
not exceeding 3 months.

 Revoke a licence

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

11 When carrying out a review of a licence, due regard should be given to the 
Council’s licensing policy and Secretary of State Guidance issued under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

12 The Secretary of State’s guidance issued in April this year includes new 
guidance in respect of immigration issues. 

13 Paragraph  2.6 says ‘The prevention of crime includes the prevention of 
immigration crime including the prevention of illegal working in licensed 

Page 71



premises. Licensing authorities should work with Home Office Immigration 
Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these matters.’

14 Paragraph 4.22 highlights the importance placed on immigration offences, as it 
considers that it is grounds for objecting to the granting of a personal licence 
on the basis that it would be prejudicial to the prevention of crime and 
disorder.

15 Paragraph 8.99 says (although in respect of objections to the transfer of a 
premises licence, again highlights that it would be appropriate), ‘in exceptional 
circumstances for objections to be raised by the police or immigration officials 
where the transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working.’

16 These following paragraphs of the guidance are in respect of a review of the 
premises, where crime and disorder is an issue. It highlights the seriousness 
with which the Secretary of State expects licensing authorities to treat 
immigration offences on licensing premises. 

17 Paragraph 11.18 says ‘Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account 
any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been required to pay 
for employing an illegal worker.’

18 Paragraph 11.26 says ‘Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on 
the grounds that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is 
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the 
premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is 
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems 
may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence 
holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with 
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing 
authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the 
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in 
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence 
holder. ‘

19 Paragraph 11.27 says ‘There is certain criminal activity that may arise in 
connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly 
seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises: 
• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs 

Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and 

music, which does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts 

on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity 
for crime of young people; 

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
• for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of 

their immigration status in the UK; 

Page 72



• for unlawful gambling; and 
• for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. ‘

20 Paragraph 11.28 says ‘It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the 
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, 
which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to 
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing 
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined 
through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously 
considered.’ 

23 The Council’s existing licensing policy does not specifically make reference to 
immigration issues, but the new policy which takes effect on the 1 December 
2017, does have the following relevant paragraphs
3.3 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime, 

and the Licensing Authority will work with Home Office Immigration 
Enforcement in respect of these matters.

 The promotion of the licensing objective, to prevent crime and disorder, 
places a responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in 
achieving this objective. If representations are made to the Licensing 
Authority applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their 
operating schedule that suitable and sufficient measures have 
been identified and will be implemented and maintained to reduce 
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their 
premises, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of 
their premises and events.

3.4 When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should 
consider those factors that impact on crime and disorder. These may 
include:

 Underage drinking
 Drunkenness on premises
 Public drunkenness
 Drugs
 Violent behaviour
 Anti-social behaviour
 Illegal working

Control Measures

3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist 
applicants who may need to take account of them in their operating 
schedule in the event that representations are received, having regard 
to their particular type of premises and/or activities:

(a) Effective and responsible management of premises
(b) Training and supervision of staff

Page 73



(c) Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Safer Clubbing, the National 
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit and other voluntary codes of 
practice, including those relating to drinks promotions e.g. The Point of 
Sale Promotions published by BBPA, Security in Design published by 
BBPA and Drugs and Pubs, published by BBPA)

(d) Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards e.g. PASS, locally approved 
‘proof of age’ cards e.g. ’Prove It’ and/or ‘new type’ driving licences with 
photographs or adoption of industry best practice (e.g. Challenge 25 
policy)

(e) Provision of effective CCTV and mirrors in and around premises
(f) Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed Doorstaff
(g) Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels
(h) Provision of secure, deposit boxes for confiscated items (‘sin bins’)
(i) Provision of litterbins and other security measures, such as lighting, 

outside premises
(j) Membership of local ‘Pubwatch’ schemes or similar organisations
(k) Right to work checks on staff and retention of documents

24 If the Committee in their decision wishes to impose conditions, the only 
conditions that can be imposed are those that are necessary and 
proportionate to promote the licensing objective relative to the representations 
received. Equally, the Committee should not impose conditions that duplicate 
the effect of existing legislation.

25 Secretary of State guidance provides in paragraph 10.8 and 10.10 the 
following guidance for members-
10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its 

discretion has been exercised following receipt of relevant 
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all 
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to impose 
conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In 
order to promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions 
may be included that are aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed 
premises.

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the 
size, type, location and characteristics and activities taking place at the 
premises concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-
case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these individual 
aspects should be avoided…Conditions that are considered appropriate 
for the prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol 
or late night refreshment might include requiring a premises licence 
holder to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the 
licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any document checked as 
part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 
Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive 
to the indirect costs that can arise because of conditions.

Page 74



Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

There may be 
further cases of 
illegal working at 
these premises

3. Members 
would need to 
take a view on 
the probability 
of further 
incidents 
taking place at 
these 
premises

The 
undermining 
of the 
licensing 
objective 
relating to the 
prevention of 
crime 

The undermining of 
the licensing objective 
relating to the 
prevention of crime 
and disorder would be 
treated as a serious 
matter by the 
Licensing Authority

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



 

 

CONTENTS 

 

Application for Review       page 1 

Document 1.          page 10 

1.0 Outline of Circumstances Leading to Review  page 10 

 2.0 Reasons for Review      page 11 

 3.0 Outcome Sought      page 12 

 4.0 Immigration Offences      page 16 

 5.0 Steps to Avoid Employment of Illegal Worker  page 17 

 6.0 Relevance/Irrelevance of Civil Penalty Prosecution page 18 

 7.0 Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003)    page 19 

 8.0 Case Law       page 22 

 Appendix A        page 26   

 

Document 2. Statement of Immigration Officer DAVIS   page 29 

Document 3 Statement of Immigration Officer CLOUTING  page 32 

Document 4. Statement of Immigration Officer NEWELL  page 35 

Document 5. Home Office Record AHMED    page 36 

 

Page 78



1
Page 79



2
Page 80



3
Page 81



4
Page 82



5
Page 83



6
Page 84



7
Page 85



8
Page 86



9 

Notes for Guidance 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue
authority and other statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in
the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing
objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of
problems which are included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.
5. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their

behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about

this application.

9 

9
Page 87



Document 1 

1.0 Outline of the Circumstances leading to the Review Application RAZZA 

1.1 Immigration Enforcement Officers attended the premises on Wed 23 August 
2017. Power of entry to the premises was using a warrant under paragraph 17(2) 
schedule 2 of Immigration Act 1971AA. (see statement of DAVIS Document 2) 

1.2 On attendance at the premises, RAZZA Restaurant, Temple Buildings, Braintree 
Road, Felsted, Essex CM6 3DL. The attendance yielded the location and arrest of 2 
immigration offenders. 

1.3 Immigration Officer Davis was stationed at the rear of the premises and at 1810 
when officers entered the front of the building a male attempted to exit via this door 
whilst attempting to take off a white chefs jacket. (see statement of DAVIS 
Document 2). This individual was then spoken to by IO CLOUTING and identified as 

 a Bangladesh national. 

1.4 Home Office checks confirmed is listed as an absconder since March 
2016.  was arrested at 1820 pending removal from the UK,  has 
no leave to remain in the UK, no permission to work and failed to report as required. 
It is believed he was working at the premises, he was dressed the same as three 
other males present, black trousers, smart black shoes and white collared shirt. It is 
believed he was working as a waiter. (see statement of CLOUTING document 3) 

1.5 IO DAVIS then ascended stairs he heard noises coming from and was met on 
the landing by an older male in a pink shirt  who confirmed he was British and had a 
British passport in the nearby room, he was subsequently identified as 

, whilst following this male to view the passport another male was 
encountered, dressed in a red t shirt and dark trousers.  

1.6 This male was very nervous and gave his name as  dob 
, stated he had arrived in 2009 as a working holidaymaker with a 

visa until 2011. He had been served notice as an overstayer but had given his 
papers to a solicitor in Ilford and logged a human rights application. He has no right 
to work. (see statement of DAVIS document 2) 

1.7 after speaking with IO Davis then came down the stairs 
and shut the restaurant for business. He stated to IO NEWELL that he was a waiter 
and did not know any of the other staff members contradicting what he had told IO 
DAVIS, “Do you work here/”, “Yes I am a waiter”, “OK, do you know how many other 
staff are here tonight?”, “Yes, all six of us” (see statement of DAVIS document 

10
Page 88



2).  further stated that the restaurant owner is Md Saysta MIAH. (see 
statement of NEWELL document 4) 

1.8 The statements given demonstrate clearly that no heed was taken to 
identify the validity of entitlement to work, that the workers finding themselves 
in this employ were not suitably or adequately remunerated, effectively 
working as modern day slaves and that legislation required of the employer, to 
validate right to work, to operate under employment law, fulfilling minimum 
wage, NI and tax contribution requirements, was wholly ignored. 

1.9 Of the 2 individuals located and identified as Immigration Offenders in this 
document, the following updates apply: 

- has an outstanding Human Rights Application and was served at the 
scene with notice of his immigration status (a RED1, RED3 & IS96) and released to 
report to the Immigration Office at Becket House (see Doc 2 Statement of DAVIS). 
No right to work. 

 - Home office records show subject claimed Asylum on which 
remains outstanding. Subject is currently being detained at Harmondsworth 
detention centre and no longer an absconder. Subject has no valid leave. No right to 
work. (See Doc 5). 

1.10 In accordance with paragraph 11.9 of the Statutory Guidance Essex Police will 
amplify its representation at the subsequent hearing and may submit further 
evidential or supporting material ahead of the hearing in support of its application.   

1.11 Essex Police would ask the authority to take account of such additional 
documentary or other information produced by it in support of its representations, as 
it may do under Regulations 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005. 

1.12 Furthermore, in accordance with Regulation 8 of those Regulations; Essex 
Police confirms that its representatives will attend the hearing and additionally 
requests permission for Jack Davis (Chief Immigration Officer, Immigration 
Compliance and Enforcement, East of England), or his deputy, to appear at the 
hearing so that they may, if necessary, assist the Authority on any matter of 
immigration policy, procedure or practice arising in relation to the circumstances of 
the enforcement activity which forms the basis of this review application. 

2.0 Reasons for Review 

11
Page 89



2.1 Essex Police has brought this review because the statutory crime prevention 
objective in the 2003 Act includes the prevention of immigration crime and the 
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (Paragraph 11.26 Guidance 
for Licensing Authorities to Prevent Illegal Working in Licensed Premises in 
England and Wales [6 April 2017](Home Office).  

2.2 Paragraphs 7.1 – 7.4 of this application detail why a warning or other activity 
falling short of a review are inappropriate when considering premises who 
have been found to engage illegal workers and thus why Essex Police has 
proceeded straight to review. 

2.3 Illegal workers were discovered at the premises.  It is an offence to work when 
a person is disqualified to do so and such an offence can only be committed 
with the co-operation of a premises licence holder or its agents.  It is also an 
offence to employ an illegal worker where there is reason to believe this is the 
case.  The case of East Lindsey District Council v Hanif (see 8.12) 
determined that in such circumstances, even without a prosecution, the crime 
prevention objective is engaged. 

2.4 Whether by negligence or wilful blindness illegal workers were engaged in 
activity on the premises, yet it is a simple process for an employer to ascertain 
what documents they should check before a person is allowed to work 
(please see section 5 and Appendix A of this application).   

2.5 Essex Police submits that for commercial reasons those engaged in the 
management of the premises ought to have known illegal workers had been 
engaged or otherwise deliberately ignored the question. 

3.0 Outcome Sought 

3.1 Essex Police asks that the premises licence is revoked.  The premises licence 
holder himself or through its agents have engaged in criminal activity by 
employing illegal workers and facilitating disqualified immigrants to work 
illegally and taken advantage of their situation by failing to correctly follow 
employment procedure and pay them correctly.  

3.2 Sections 4 – 7 (of this submission), Appended documents, provide the 
licensing sub-committee background arguments and information pertinent to 
this review.  These: 

12
Page 90



• Support Essex Police’s contention that revocation is an appropriate
step;

• Provide the sub-committee with a sound rationale as to why, despite
the respondent’s argument, it should revoke the licence; and

• Satisfy the Authority that its decision is defensible if challenged on
appeal.

3.3 It is in such circumstances as this review application that a respondent may 
suggest that conditions are imposed which would prevent a reoccurrence of 
the employment of illegal workers in the future; an argument that the sub-
committee should take remedial and not punitive action. 

3.4 Paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance states “that “Licence conditions should not 
duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 
placed on the employer by other legislation”. 

3.5 Since 2006 (with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality 
Act 2006) employers have had a duty to conduct checks to ensure employees 
and potential employees are not disqualified from working.  Only by 
completing the required checks and maintaining records of such checks can 
an employer demonstrate a ‘statutory excuse’ and evade liability for a civil 
penalty issued by Immigration Enforcement. 

3.6 Essex Police contends that a licence holder who has himself or through his 
agents has negligently or deliberately failed to conduct right to work checks 
which have been a requirement since 2006 should not be afforded an 
opportunity to do so until caught and then merely be asked to do what they 
should have been doing already.   

3.7 Essex Police would refer the committee to section 5 and Appendix A of its 
submission and rely on paragraph 1.16 of the Guidance, together with 
paragraph 11.27 and 11.28 of the Guidance (set out in this submission at 7.9 
and 7.10) as to why conditions are inappropriate. 

3.8 The cases of Bassetlaw (set out at 8.2 onwards) considered punitive 
(suspension/revocation) v remedial responses where a review is brought and 
in particular set out that deterrence was a legitimate outcome of a review.   

3.9 The imposition of conditions would be (even if it were not replicating ‘other 
duties or responsibilities placed on the employer’) merely an action to remedy 
the harm occasioned by the employment of illegal workers.  This is a serious 
matter (as defined by paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance) and Mrs Justice 

13
Page 91



Slade (case of Bassetlaw) examining was clear that “the action on appeal 
being confined in effect to reiterating existing practice with a minimal addition 
was entirely inappropriate”. 

3.10 The case of Bassetlaw is clear in in its examination of the legitimacy of 
deterrence and the imposition of conditions in ‘serious matters’ and finds 
support within the Guidance itself at paragraph 11.26 (detailed in this 
submission at 7.5) – deterrence is a legitimate response and the committee 
does not need to consider only remedial action when a review is brought. 

3.11 If it were not for criminally minded or complicit employers; illegal workers 
would not be able to obtain a settled lifestyle and deprive legitimate workers of 
employment.  The use of illegal labour provides an unfair competitive edge 
and deprives the UK economy of tax revenue.  Illegal workers are often paid 
below the minimum wage (itself an offence) and National Insurance payments 
are not paid.  The main draw for illegal immigration is work and low-skilled 
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation by criminal enterprises; 
finding themselves in appalling accommodation and toiling in poor working 
conditions for long hours for little remuneration. 

3.12 Respondents who fail to convince a sub-committee that the imposition of 
conditions to undertake proper right to work checks is a suitable alternative to 
a punitive (deterrent) outcome often point to the option of suspension of a 
licence; pointing out that this may be a suitable punitive response instead 
which will deter others.   

3.13 Often this will include claims that the business has ‘learnt its lesson’ and that 
since its criminal activity has been discovered it has reconsidered its position, 
brought in new procedures, ‘parachuted in’ consultants and new managers 
etc.  On occasion it is hinted that the respondent will ‘accept’ a suspension as 
an alternative to revocation, assuaging an authority’s concern that an appeal 
may otherwise be launched. 

3.14 Essex Police would counter such claims and point to the continuing changes 
made to both immigration law and the Guidance which point to a requirement 
to send a clear message to potential illegal immigrants that UK authorities will 
do all they can to prevent them finding illegal employment and a similar 
message to employers that those employing illegal workers will face severe 
disruption and penalties. 

3.15 Paragraph 11.26 of the Guidance provides that, “The licensing authority’s duty 
is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

14
Page 92



the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and 
not those of the individual licence holder”. 

3.16 That illegal working is considered extremely serious is set out within 
paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance: 

“There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously.  
These are the use of the licensed premises…for employing a person 
who is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status 
in the UK”. 

3.17 Essex Police would point out that the above paragraph requires no 
‘knowledge’ that an individual is an illegal worker – instead it again draws the 
sub-committees attention to the simplicity (set out at section 5 and Appendix 
A of the police submission) in avoiding the occurrence in the first place. 

3.18 Finally; Essex Police would invite the sub-committee to consider paragraph 
11.28 of the Guidance which states: 

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are 
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter 
such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority 
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through 
the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the 
licence –even in the first instance –should be seriously considered.” 

3.19 Essex Police concedes that this does not say a sub-committee MUST revoke 
a licence but what it would say is that where an employer has employed an 
illegal worker or otherwise permitted an illegal worker (whether paid or 
unpaid) to undertake work; it has done so when it ought to have known it 
should not have done.   

3.20 A punitive response is required to ensure that licence holder and/or its agents 
are not allowed to repeat the exercise and in particular, in the interests of the 
wider community to support responsible businesses and the jobs of both UK 
citizens and lawful migrants.  It is also required to act as a deterrent to others 
who would otherwise seek to seek an unfair competitive advantage, exploit 
workers and deny work to the local community, evade the payment of income 
tax and (unlawfully) inflate their profits to the expense of others. 

15
Page 93



3.21 Essex Police believes revocation is an appropriate outcome to this review 
application. 

4.0 Immigration Offences 

4.1 The prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective has been engaged 
because it is, in part, concerned with the prevention of immigration crime in 
connection with licensed premises. 

4.2 The basis of the police submission seeking revocation of the premises licence 
is that the employment of illegal workers is a criminal matter as is working 
illegally.  Illegal workers are those subject to immigration control and either do 
not have leave to enter or remain in the UK, or who are in breach of a 
condition preventing them taking up the work in question. 

4.3 It is an employer’s responsibility to be aware of their obligations and ensure 
they understand the immigration landscape to avoid the risk of prosecution, 
the imposition of a civil penalty or the revocation/suspension of their premises 
licence. 

4.4 Since 2006, with the introduction of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality 
Act, it has been unlawful to employ a person who is disqualified from 
employment because of their immigration status.  Employers risk a civil 
penalty (of up to £20,000 per employed person) if they are found to have 
negligently employed someone who is disqualified.  A statutory excuse 
against payment exists where the employer can demonstrate they correctly 
carried out document checks, i.e. that they were duped by fake or forged 
documents. Employers therefore have to conduct checks to ensure that their 
employees have the right to work. 

4.5 The Immigration Act 2016 came into force in July 2016 and its explanatory 
notes state that “these offences were broadened to capture, in particular, 
employers who deliberately did not undertake right to work checks in order 
that they could not have the specific intent (previously) required to ‘knowingly’ 
employ an illegal worker.  It amended other immigration legislation and 
specifically reduced the burden of proof for offences. 

4.6 Since 2016 an employer may be prosecuted not only if they knew their 
employee was disqualified from working but also if they had reasonable 
cause to believe that an employee did not have the right to work: what might 
be described as wilful ignorance’, where either no documents are requested 
or none are presented despite  a request.  This means an offence is 

16
Page 94



committed when an employer ‘ought to have known’ the person did not have 
the right to work. 

4.7 Since 2016 it has also been an offence to work when disqualified from doing 
so.  It is obvious that without a negligent or wilfully ignorant employer, an 
illegal worker cannot work.  Such an employer facilitates a criminal offence 
and Essex Police highlights this as relevant irrespective of whether a civil 
penalty is imposed or a prosecution launched for employing an illegal worker. 

4.8 In this context, under section 3(1)(C)(i) Immigration Act 1971 (as amended by 
the 2016 Act) working restrictions are not limited simply to employed work but 
includes paid or unpaid work, paid and unpaid work placements undertaken 
as part of a course or period of study, self-employment and engaging in 
business or professional activity.  Undertaking, for instance, an unpaid work 
trial or working in exchange for a non-monetary reward (such as board and 
lodging) is illegally working and is a criminal offence committed by the worker 
and facilitated by the ‘employer’. 

5.0 Steps to Avoid the Employment of an Illegal Worker 

5.1 It is a straightforward process for any employer, no matter how small, to 
prevent themselves employing an illegal worker.  If an employer has failed to 
take even the most basic steps then they have chosen to remain ignorant of 
the immigration status of their workforce and no amount of potential imposed 
conditions is sufficient, in our opinion, to avoid the legitimacy of revocation in 
proving a deterrent to others to the employment of illegal workers. 

5.2 The Home Office has made checklists widely available which set out what a 
responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in order 
to demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently employing 
an illegal worker.   

5.3 Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory 
applications for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of 
premises licences and designated premises supervisor variations. 

5.4 The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer 
checklists and information on the GOV.UK website. 

5.5 The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details 
general advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents, 
what if the job applicant can’t show their documents and provides details of an 
employers’ telephone helpline.  This page has a direct link to what documents 

17
Page 95

https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work


are acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK and also allows an employer 
to fill out an online enquiry about a named individual they are considering 
offering employment to. 

5.6 Appendix A sets the above out in some detail. 

6.0 Relevance/Irrelevance of a Civil Penalty or Prosecution 

6.1 An employer found to have ‘employed’ an illegal worker may, dependent on 
culpability and the evidence available, be issued with a civil penalty or 
prosecuted or indeed neither.  In common with other agencies with law 
enforcement responsibilities there exist a number of reasons why Immigration 
Enforcement may prefer a non-judicial disposal (e.g. a warning or immigration 
civil penalty etc.) to a judicial disposal (prosecution) – one being cost. 

6.2 A prosecution may follow where the evidence is compelling that an employer 
has employed an illegal worker and had reasonable cause to believe that 
worker was disqualified from working.   

6.3 Alternatively, where the evidence is less compelling or the evidence points to 
negligence rather than intent, a civil penalty may be issued in accordance with 
the Home Office Code of Practice on Preventing Illegal Working (May 2014).  
In the case of a civil penalty the balance of probabilities test applies whereas 
a prosecution requires a higher burden of proof.   

6.4 There are many factors where, even if an illegal worker is discovered, a 
penalty may not be imposed and these include the subsequent cooperation of 
the employer.  Often though there is no dispute that an illegal worker was 
working at a premises, immigration officers conducting the initial investigation 
cannot gather sufficient evidence to ‘prove’ that the individual was ‘employed’ 
at that time.  This can often be the case where wages are not paid, ‘friends’ 
assist or it is alleged an unpaid trial period was underway – as well as ‘they 
only started today’ defence. 

6.5 However, to issue a civil penalty under section 15 Immigration, Asylum and 
Nationality Act 2006 the Home Office Code of Practice requires some proof 
that not only was an illegal worker working at the premises but they were 
‘employed’.  Usually this is taken as meaning the illegal worker was under a 

18
Page 96



contract of service or apprenticeship, whether express or implied and whether 
oral or written. 

6.6 In such cases where this cannot be demonstrated, a civil penalty may not be 
issued even where the premises licence holder or his agent has facilitated an 
illegal worker committing an offence under section 24B Immigration Act 1971 
(as amended by Immigration Act 2016) of working illegally.  This does not 
however prevent the crime prevention objective being engaged with as the 
premises licence holder has nonetheless facilitated a criminal offence taking 
place and the lack of checks suggests that in the past (and is likely in the 
future) ‘employed illegal workers.  The East Lindsey case (see 8.2) provides 
that action (revocation) to prevent what is likely to happen in the future is 
legitimate. 

6.7 The issuing of a civil penalty means Immigration Enforcement is confident it 
can demonstrate (on the balance of probabilities) that the illegal worker was 
‘employed’ and that a statutory excuse (i.e. that proper checks were carried 
out) does not exist.  A prosecution demonstrates that Immigration 
Enforcement is confident it can show (beyond all reasonable doubt) that the 
illegal worker was ‘employed’ and the employer had reasonable grounds to 
believe they had no right to work. 

6.8 The lack of either a civil penalty or prosecution does not mean that an illegal 
worker was not working; rather that the strict definition of ‘employed’ has not 
been made out sufficiently even though the illegal worker themselves 
committed an offence which was facilitated by the premises licence holder or 
its agents. 

7.0 Statutory Guidance (s182 LA 2003) and the Authority’s Licensing Policy 

7.1 In order to deflect responsibility and avoid punitive action, respondent’s to 
review hearings sometimes refer to both the statutory guidance issued under 
section 182 Licensing Act 2003 and those parts of the Authority’s own policy 
which replicate paragraph 11.10 of that Guidance, viz: 

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns 
about problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to 
give licence holder’s early warning of their concerns and the need for 
improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or 
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those 
concerns. 

19
Page 97



7.2 Essex Police submits that in the particular circumstances of cases where 
Immigration Control and Enforcement receive intelligence concerning the 
employment of illegal workers and act upon it; such warnings are 
inappropriate.   

7.3 Not only would advance warning of enforcement activity prevent the detention 
of persons committing crimes and the securing of evidence; a warning after 
the event to comply with immigration legislation serves as an inducement to 
continue serious criminal activity until caught ‘the first time’.   

7.4 In particular; Essex Police submits that paragraph 11.10 does not apply when 
more specific paragraphs (Reviews arising in connection with crime, 11.24 – 
11.29) apply to the case in question. 

7.5 Paragraph 11.26 

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds 
that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is 
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the 
premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 
….The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal 
working in the interests of the wider community and not those of the 
individual licence holder. 

7.6 Thus the financial hardship occasioned by the suspension or revocation of the 
premises licence should, we opine, not sway the sub-committee but instead it 
should look at what is appropriate to promote the objective within the wider 
business and local community given (as the Rt. Hon James Brokenshine, 
Immigration Minister quoted when he introduced the Immigration Act 2016) 
“illegal labour exploits workers, denies work to UK citizens and legal migrants 
and drives down wages”.  It also provides those employing illegal workers with 
a competitive advantage over its business rivals and deprives the UK 
Government of income tax receipts.  It also deprives workers access to State 
care and protection, the minimum wage, protection of the working time and 
health and safety regulations and both the State and (compulsory) private 
pension schemes. 

7.7 In particular; the sub-committee will be asked to consider (below) the cases of 
R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR (D) 
350 and East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s 
Restaurant and Takeaway), [2016} EWHC 1265 (Admin) where in both cases 

20
Page 98



the High Court stated remedy of the harm or potential harm is not the only 
consideration and that deterrence is an appropriate consideration in dealing 
with reviews where there has been activity in connection with crime. 

7.8 Essex Police submit that in this case, revocation of the premises licence is 
appropriate and proportionate as deterrence to other businesses in 
implementing the authority’s duty to prevent illegal working. 

7.9 Paragraph 11.27 of the Guidance states: 

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These 
are the use of the licensed premises……. for employing a person who 
is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status in 
the UK. 

Essex Police would draw the sub-committee’s attention to the change in 
wording of this paragraph following the April 2017 revision of the guidance, 
where the previous reference to ‘knowingly employing’ was removed. 

7.10 Paragraph 11.28 of the Guidance states: 

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which 
are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to 
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing 
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being 
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance –
should be seriously considered. 

Essex Police considers this paragraph self-explanatory; where an enterprise 
employs illegal workers it is the duty of Essex Police to work with Immigration 
Enforcement to bring forward reviews and for the authority to consider 
revocation in the first instance. 

7.11 In support of this statement; Essex Police would draw the sub-committee’s 
attention to the “Guidance for Licensing Authorities to Prevent Illegal Working 
in Licensed Premises in England and Wales” (Home Office)[April 2017] where 
at section 4.1 it states;  

21
Page 99



“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies will 
use the review procedures effectively to deter illegal working”. 

7.12 The changes to the Statutory Guidance (11.25 & 11.26) and the July 2016 
changes to the Immigration Act aim to disrupt undocumented migrants’ ability 
to secure a settled lifestyle or establish themselves in the UK by depriving 
them of employment opportunities, such as either they choose to not come to 
the UK or they remove themselves voluntarily.   

7.13 Since the main draw for illegal migration is work, and since low-skilled 
migrants are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation at the hand of criminal 
enterprises, the law has strengthened enforcement measures and the 
statutory Guidance to deter illegal workers and those that employ them.   

7.14 Deterrence is a key element of the UK government’s strategy to reduce illegal 
working and is supported by both the Guidance and Case Law (see 8.0 
below). 

8.0 Case Law 

8.1 Deterrence as a legitimate consideration by a licensing sub-committee has 
been considered before the High Court where remedial measures (such as 
the imposition of additional conditions) were distinguished from legitimate 
deterrent (punitive) measures such as revocation. 

8.2 R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008] WLR (D) 
350. 

This was a case where a premises had sold alcohol to under age persons and 
subsequently the licensing authority suspended the licence.  This was 
overturned on appeal to the Magistrates’ Court and subsequently appealed to 
the High Court by the authority.   

8.3 Issues relevant to the case before today’s sub-committee which were 
considered in the Bassetlaw judgement included: 

• whether a licensing authority was restricted to remedial action (not
punitive action such as revocation); and

• certain criminal activities which may arise in connection with licensed
premises, and which the Secretary of State considers should be
treated particularly seriously - and the licensing authority’s duty in
circumstances such as these "... to take steps with a view to the

22
Page 100



promotion of the licensing objectives in the interests of the wider 
community and not those of the individual holder of the premises 
licence (now contained within paragraphs 11.26 and 11.27).   

8.4 It also considered what is now contained withi) paragraph 11.20 

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the 
cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify. The 
remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and 
should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review. 

8.5 It also considered; what is now contained within paragraph 11.21 

However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial 
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is 
appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed 
premises.  

8.6 In the judgement, in favour of the Authority, Mrs Justice Slade stated (at 32.1 
& 33.1 of the citation): 

“Where criminal activity is applicable, as here, wider considerations 
come into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged 
includes the prevention of crime. In those circumstances, deterrence, in 
my judgment, is an appropriate objective and one contemplated by the 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State.   However, in my judgment 
deterrence is an appropriate consideration when the paragraphs 
specifically directed to dealing with reviews where there has been 
activity in connection with crime are applicable.” 

8.7 Having confirmed the legitimacy of punitive measures (suspension/revocation) 
for offences listed in (what is now contained within paragraph 11.27 of the 
Guidance), Mrs Justice Slade concerned herself with another aspect of the 
appeal – namely the imposition of conditions which were already present but 
not properly implemented (paragraph 34.1). 

8.8 This has some corollary with the argument of some review application 
respondents that the imposition of conditions to check immigration status 
either directly or through an agency (though essentially a requirement since 
2006 under the Immigration, Asylum and Immigration Act 2006) would serve 

23
Page 101



as sufficient remedy for the employment of illegal workers to negate a 
deterrent (suspension/revocation) being imposed by the sub-committee 
despite the wording of the Guidance at paragraph 11.28. 

8.9 Mrs Justice Slade stated: The sixth new provision was acceptable 
identification to establish the age of a purchaser shall be a driving licence with 
photographs, passport or proof of age scheme card recognised by or 
acceptable by the licensing authority. I am told these provisions were already 
in place, but not properly implemented. No doubt those are perfectly sensible 
and appropriate provisions to be included on a licence.  However it is said that 
the action taken on appeal being confined in effect to reiterating existing 
practice with a minimal addition was entirely inappropriate to meet the 
situation where there have been sales of alcohol to 14 year old girls. 

8.10 Essex Police contends that in the case before the sub-committee the facts are 
similar.  In the cited case straightforward sensible enquiries could have been 
made as to the age of the children and the imposition of additional conditions 
as a form of remedy was considered inappropriate by Mrs Justice Slade for 
‘those serious cases’ set out in the Guidance.   

8.11 In the case before the sub-committee, simple steps (set out at Appendix A) 
were available to prevent the employment of illegal workers – none were 
taken; the imposition of conditions to remedy this situation is inconsistent with 
the section 182 Guidance and this case citation.  A negligent employer should 
expect revocation in the first instance. 

8.12 East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s Restaurant and 
Takeaway), [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin) 

This is a recent High Court decision (published April 2016) which has 
similarities with the one before the sub-committee in that it related to the 
employment of an illegal worker and where a prosecution for such had not 
been instigated.   

Amongst other matters it had been argued for the premises licence holder that 
the crime prevention objective was not engaged where a prosecution or 
conviction for the employment of an illegal worker was not in place.  Whilst the 
initial hearing may have suggested several illegal workers being employed, 
the High Court appeal and decision related to the employment of one 
individual and is therefore, Essex Police would argue, indistinguishable from 
the matter before the sub-committee today. 

24
Page 102



8.13 The case reaffirms the principle that responsible authorities need not wait for 
the licensing objectives to actually be undermined; that crucially in considering 
whether the crime prevention objective has been engaged a prospective 
consideration (i.e. what is likely to happen in the future) of what is warranted 
is a key factor.  It also reaffirmed the case of Bassetlaw in concluding that 
deterrence is a legitimate consideration of a sub-committee.  

Mr Justice Jay stated: “The question was not whether the respondent 
had been found guilty of criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, 
but whether revocation of his licence was appropriate and 
proportionate in the light of the salient licensing objectives, namely the 
prevention of crime and disorder. This requires a much broader 
approach to the issue than the mere identification of criminal 
convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much as antecedent facts 
will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the 
prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration 
of what is warranted in the public interest, having regard to the twin 
considerations of prevention and deterrence. In any event, I agree with 
Mr Kolvin that criminal convictions are not required.” 

Mr Justice Jay added: “Having regard in particular to the twin 
requirements of prevention and deterrence, there was in my judgment 
only one answer to this case. The respondent exploited a vulnerable 
individual from his community by acting in plain, albeit covert, breach of 
the criminal law. In my view his licence should be revoked. 

25
Page 103



APPENDIX A 

HOW DOES AN EMPLOYER ENSURE THEY EMPLOY ONLY ‘LEGAL WORKERS’ 

The Home Office has made checklists widely available which set out what a 
responsible employer should ask for ahead of employing any person in order to 
demonstrate ‘due diligence’ and avoid liability for inadvertently employing an illegal 
worker.   

Since April 2017 these checklists have been embedded in the statutory applications 
for personal licences and premises licences, the transfer of premises licences and 
designated premises supervisor variations. 

The first 4 ‘hits’ on a Google search for “right to work” are links to employer 
checklists and information on the GOV.UK website. 

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) details general 
advice, checking the documents, taking a copy of the documents, what if the job 
applicant can’t show their documents and provides details of an employers’ 
telephone helpline (see below).  This page has a direct link to what documents are 
acceptable proofs of a right to work in the UK this lists the acceptable documents 
and what to look for (it includes photographs and what to look for in particular). 

The second link is to the Home Office document; “An Employer’s Guide to Right to 
Work Checks” (published 16 May 2014 last updated 16 August 2017). 

Another link provides a site (https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-
status) which guides an employer through the process AND allows an employer to 
make an online submission to the Home Office to check if the proposed employee is 
prohibited from working as well as providing a telephone helpline. 

The first link (https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work) provides: 

General Advice 

Amongst the advice contained on the GOV.UK website is the following: 

• You must see the applicant’s original documents;
• You must check that the documents are valid with the applicant present; and
• You must make and keep copies of the documents and record the date you

made the check.

Checking the Documents 

26
Page 104

https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/employee-immigration-employment-status
https://www.gov.uk/check-job-applicant-right-to-work


In relation to checking the documents it also adds that an employer needs to check 
that: 

• the documents are genuine, original and unchanged and belong to the person
who has given them to you;

• the dates for the applicant’s right to work in the UK haven’t expired;
• photos are the same across all documents and look like the applicant;
• dates of birth are the same across all documents;
• the applicant has permission to do the type of work you’re offering (including

any limit on the number of hours they can work);
• for students you see evidence of their study and vacation times; and
• if 2 documents give different names, the applicant has supporting documents

showing why they’re different, eg a marriage certificate or divorce decree

Taking a copy of the documents 

When you copy the documents: 

• make a copy that can’t be changed, e.g. a photocopy
• for passports, copy any page with the expiry date and applicant’s details (eg

nationality, date of birth and photograph) including endorsements, eg a work
visa

• for biometric residence permits and residence cards (biometric format), copy
both sides

• for all other documents you must make a complete copy
• keep copies during the applicant’s employment and for 2 years after they stop

working for you
• record the date the check was made

If the job applicant can’t show their documents 

You must ask the Home Office to check your employee or potential employee’s 
immigration employment status if one of the following applies: 

• you’re reasonably satisfied that they can’t show you their documents because
of an outstanding appeal, administrative review or application with the Home
Office;

• they have an Application Registration Card; or
• they have a Certificate of Application that is less than 6 months old

27
Page 105



Application registration cards and certificates of application must state that the work 
the employer is offering is permitted. Many of these documents don’t allow the 
person to work. 

The Home Office will send you a ‘Positive Verification Notice’ to confirm that the 
applicant has the right to work. You must keep this document. 

ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENTS 

The list of acceptable documents can be found via the link to 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/44195
7/employers_guide_to_acceptable_right_to_work_documents_v5.pdf  

28
Page 106

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/441957/employers_guide_to_acceptable_right_to_work_documents_v5.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/441957/employers_guide_to_acceptable_right_to_work_documents_v5.pdf


29
Page 107



30
Page 108



31
Page 109



32
Page 110



33
Page 111



34
Page 112



35
Page 113



OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 
SVEC 

Lunar House 
Croydon 

Standard Disclaimer 
The above information is confidential and forwarded on the understanding that it is not disclosed to any third party. 
Should there be any ensuing criminal legal proceedings, any of the above information may only be submitted in the form 
of an official Home Office witness statement, which you can obtain through this office, please send this by email to: 
ICESSVECStatements@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk  

Page 1 of 1 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Enquiry 
ERN 174179 

Date 27 September 2017 

Prepared By 

Requesting Officer 

Your Ref 76878 

Organisation Police 

oOo 

Subject (1) 
Name  

HO Reference 
Date of Birth

Nationality Bangladesh 
Check(s) requested Response 

Current Status Home office records show subject claimed Asylum on 06-Sep-2017 
which remains outstanding. 

Subject is currently being detained at Harmondsworth detention 
centre and no longer an absconder. 

Subject has no valid leave. 

36

Document 5

Page 114



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Item 2 - Application for the Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 – Radhuni
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	3 Item 3 - Application for the Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 – Razza
	Appendix 1
	RAZZA FINAL.pdf
	RAZZA Review Doc redacted and signed 131017v2.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	HO record AHMED_Redacted.pdf
	Razza Review Doc redacted and signed 131017.pdf

	CONTENTS.pdf

	FINAL Arguments for Immigration Reviews RAZZA.pdf

	FINAL CONTENTS.pdf

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4




